

**CONFIRM:
GEN. CRAIG
CAMPBELL,
COMM.,
MILITARY &
VETERANS'
AFFAIRS**



OFFICIAL BUSINESS

Alaska State Legislature

Senate

STATE CAPITOL, ROOM 213
JUNEAU, ALASKA 99801-1182
(907) 465-3701
FAX: 465-2832
EMAIL: senate_secretary@legis.state.ak.us

January 22, 2003

MEMORANDUM

TO: Senate: Taylor, Chair
State Affairs Committee

FROM: Kirsten Waid *KW*
Acting Secretary of the Senate

SUBJECT: Governor's Confirmations

Pursuant to Article III, Section 25 of the Alaska Constitution, President Therriault has referred the following names for legislative confirmation to your committee for a hearing, recommendation and report:

Commissioner - Department of Corrections
Marc Antrim
Appointed: 12/09/2002

Commissioner - Department of Military and Veterans' Affairs
Colonel Craig E. Campbell
Appointed: 12/30/2002

KW/lc
Resumes attached

Mr. Craig E. Campbell
Executive Director
Office of Planning, Development, and Public Works
Municipality of Anchorage

Mr. Campbell serves as the Executive Director for the Office of Planning, Development, and Public Works for the Municipality of Anchorage. Appointed in August 2000, he serves at the pleasure of the Mayor. He is responsible for over 450 municipal employees assigned to six departments, which include the Planning Department, Development Services Department, Traffic Department, Street Maintenance Department, Facility and Fleet Maintenance Department, Project Management and Engineering Department, and the Municipal Cemetery with a total annual budget exceeding \$90 million.

Mr. Campbell also serves in the Alaska Air National Guard, where he holds the rank of Colonel and is assigned as the Vice Commander, 168th Air Refueling Wing, Eielson AFB, Alaska. The Wing operates nine KC-135R air refueling tankers, with an authorized personnel strength of 720 members.

Additionally, he is an adjunct professor with Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University, teaching aviation and management courses at Elmendorf AFB, Alaska.

Professional Experience

- US Air Force, Air Traffic Control Officer, 1975 – 1984
- California Air National Guard, Chief Air Traffic Control Officer, 1984 – 1991
- Alaska Air National Guard, Logistics Squadron Commander, 1990 - 1997
- Alaska Air National Guard, Executive Support Staff Officer, 1999 – 2000
- Aviation Consultant, specializing in airport master and environmental planning, 1984 – 1998. He has completed extensive airport projects in Alaska and other cities across the United States, as well as working in Russia, Kazakhstan, Japan, and Korea.

Public Organizations, Boards, and Commissions:

- Anchorage Assembly, 1986 – 1996. Served twice as Chairman (1991 – 1993 & 1995 – 1996).
- Anchorage Economic Development Corporation Board of Directors, ex officio, 1986 – 1989
- Anchorage Convention and Visitors Bureau Board of Directors, ex officio, 1989 – 1994
- Matanuska Electric Association Board of Directors, 1997 – 2000
- Salvation Army Advisory Board, 1999 – 2000
- Anchorage Winter Cities '94 Board of Directors, 1992 – 1994
- Anchorage Winter Cities '04 Board of Directors, Vice Chairman, 2001 – Present
- Elmendorf Air Force Base Restoration Advisory Board, 2000 - Present
- North Star Foundation Board of Directors, 2002 – Present
- Eagle Valley Community Council President, 1985 – 1986

Education

- University of Tulsa, Oklahoma. B.S in Political Science, minor in Urban Planning, 1974
- Golden Gate University, San Francisco, California, Master of Public Administration, 1981
- FAA Land Use Compatibility Course, Georgia Tech University, 1985
- Naval War College, Newport, Rhode Island, Master of Arts in National Security and Strategic Studies, 1999

EDUCATION:

1974 Bachelor of Science in Political Science, University of Tulsa, Oklahoma
1979 Squadron Officer School, Maxwell AFB, Alabama
1980 USAF Air Traffic Control Staff Officers Course, Keesler AFB, Mississippi
1981 Master of Public Administration, Golden Gate University, San Francisco, California
1983 USAF Airspace Management Course, Keesler AFB, Mississippi
1985 FAA Land Use Compatibility Course, Georgia-Tech University, Atlanta, Georgia
1995 Air Command and Staff College (Seminar Program), Elmendorf AFB, Alaska
1997 Air War College (Seminar Program), Elmendorf AFB, Alaska
1999 Master of Arts in National Security and Strategic Studies, Naval War College, Newport, Rhode Island

ASSIGNMENTS:

Apr 75 Air Traffic Control (ATC) Officers Training Course, Keesler AFB, Mississippi
Sep 75 ATC Operations, 1901st Communications Squadron, Travis AFB, California
Sep 76 Chief, Radar Approach Control, 2001st Communications Squadron, K.I. Sawyer AFB, Michigan
Sep 79 Chief, ATC Operations, 391st Communications Group, Vandenberg AFB, California
May 81 Chief, Air Traffic Operations, 1901st Communications Group, Elmendorf AFB, Alaska
Nov 84 Chief, ATC Operations, 234th Combat Communications Squadron, Hayward ANGB, California
Nov 91 Commander, 168th Resource Management Squadron, Eielson AFB, Alaska
Oct 92 Commander, 168th Logistics Squadron, Eielson AFB, Alaska
Mar 97 Chief, Long Range Planning, Alaska Air National Guard, Anchorage, Alaska
Aug 99 Executive Support Staff Officer, Alaska Air National Guard, Anchorage, Alaska
Sep 00 Vice Wing Commander, 168th Air Refueling Wing, Eielson AFB, Alaska

MAJOR AWARDS AND DECORATIONS:

Air Force Meritorious Service Medal with Two Oak Leaf Clusters
Air Force Commendation Medal with One Oak Leaf Cluster
Air Force Outstanding Unit Award with One Oak Leaf Cluster
Air Force Organizational Excellence Award
National Defense Service Medal
Air Force Longevity Service Medal
Air Reserve Forces Service Medal
Alaska Distinguished Service Medal
Alaska Commendation Medal
California Medal of Merit

EFFECTIVE DATES OF PROMOTION:

Colonel	30 March 2000
Lieutenant Colonel	05 June 1995
Major	02 June 1988
Captain	01 January 1979
First Lieutenant	05 December 1976
Second Lieutenant	02 June 1974

(Current as of November 02)